
PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 
Called by: Brad Lindmark, Chairman DATE: MONDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2024 
Members:  Aaron Booker, Jean TIME: 5:30 PM    
Crosby, Tim Nabors, Angie Goral, 
Kevin McCarthy, Chris Scrol 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA:  
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of October 16, 2024 Minutes 

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and 
Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to 
three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  
We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the 
meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, 
the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened 
litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of 
three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the 
repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  
After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you. 

E. Debbie Jarvis, Director, Court Services: Juvenile Detention Center and Resource 
Intervention Center – Staffing Update 

F. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners - NDIL 

G. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners - SDIL 

H. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods 
(PSN) Partners – CDIL 

I. Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Agreement for Police Services with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

J. Future Agenda Items 

K. Adjournment  



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety and Judiciary Committee Meeting 

County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 303 

Rockford, IL 61101 

Wednesday, October 16, 2024 
5:30 PM 

Present: Others Present: 
Brad Lindmark, Chairperson 
Aaron Booker, Vice Chairperson 
Jean Crosby 
Chris Scrol 

Absent: 
Angie Goral 
Kevin McCarthy 
Tim Nabors 

Hope Edwards, Director, Purchasing 
Justin Egler, Corrections Major, Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
Trent Brass, Emergency Mgmt. Coordinator, Winnebago County 
Daniel Larson, Stateline Amateur Radio Services 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of September 16, 2024 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and

Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to
three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be
tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign-
up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before
the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or
threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a
maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall
include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to be a
different topic.  After acknowledgment by the chair, please stand and state your name.
Thank you.

E . Daniel Larson, Stateline Amateur Radio Services - Presentation 
F. Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services – JDC and Jail Contract Extension
G. Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago County Jail
H. Resolution Accepting the Award and Authorizing the Chairman of the Winnebago

County Board to Execute a Winnebago County Mental Health Board Funding
Agreement for Accelerator Grant Awards

I. Future Agenda Items
J. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Chairperson Lindmark called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

Roll Call 
Chairperson Lindmark yes, Mr. Booker yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Scrol yes. 



 

 Page 2  
  

Approval of September 16, 2024 Minutes 
Chairperson Lindmark called for a motion to approve the September 16, 2024 meeting minutes.  
Motion: Mr. Scrol.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
Chairperson Lindmark read the Public Comment Section of the Agenda. 
 
Daniel Larson, Stateline Amateur Radio Services - Presentation  
Daniel Larson presented on the Stateline Amateur Radio Services, providing a handout to 
committee members.  Mr. Larson outlined plans and requested property for a tower installation. 

• Discussion followed. 
 
Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services – JDC and Jail Contract Extension 
Motion: Chairperson Lindmark.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Chairperson Lindmark called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago County Jail 
Motion: Chairperson Lindmark.  Second: Mr. Scrol. 
Chairperson Lindmark called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Resolution Accepting the Award and Authorizing the Chairman of the Winnebago 
County Board to Execute a Winnebago County Mental Health Board Funding Agreement 
for Accelerator Grant Awards 
Motion: Chairperson Lindmark.  Second: Mr. Booker. 
Chairperson Lindmark called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote.   
 
Future Agenda Items 

• No future agenda items reported. 
 
Adjournment 
Chairperson Lindmark called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Ms. Crosby.  Second: Mr. Booker. 
The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Nancy Bleile 
Executive Assistant 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – NDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $306,686.00 

If not, explain funding source:       Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Northern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $306,686 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office $162,516 
3) Sub-award Agreement with Illinois Department of Corrections $109,305 

Contract/Agreement: See attached.

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

 
2024 CR 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – NDIL  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 

for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 
 

61400-various-PSXXX 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of three hundred six thousand six hundred eighty-six dollars ($306,686.00), and sub-
agreements with the COOK COUNTY STATES ATTORNEY’S OFFICE in the amount of  one hundred 
sixty-two thousand five hundred sixteen dollars  ($162,516.00), the ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF 
CORRECTIONS in the amount of  one hundred nine thousand three hundred five dollars 
($109,305.00). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 

upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 
 
                                                                        Respectfully Submitted, 

      PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



AGREE DISAGREE 

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

AARON BOOKER AARON BOOKER 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

ANGIE GORAL ANGIE GORAL 

KEVIN MCCARTHY KEVIN MCCARTHY 

TIM NABORS TIM NABORS 

CHRIS SCROL CHRIS SCROL 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 
 

GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
 

     

 
Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 
 
All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 
 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?                                                                                                         yes     no 

   - If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?           yes     no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?                                                       yes      no 
  - If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate? 
 
Is the indirect cost included in the budget?                                                           yes     no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 
   - If no, please explain: Yes, however 25k of each subaward as awarded. 
 
 
Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no                                                
  - If yes, please explain: 
 
 
How many sub-awards are included in this award?   Two (2) 

   - Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?                                                yes     no 
  -  If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or     
     contract: 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods -
Northern District of Illinois - FY24  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04006-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $306,686.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Task Force has
a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes activity related to gun trafficking,
gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford
during the project period of October 1, 2024, to September 31, 2027. In Chicago, the focus is on the seven most violent police
districts: South Shore, Englewood, Back of the Yards, Lawndale, Garfield Park, Austin, and Auburn/Gresham. Rockford will
address citywide crime reduction. The overarching goal is to prevent crime before it happens by targeting high-risk individuals and
areas. Additionally, the NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. 

Building on previous PSN efforts, Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be used to increase awareness of procedural justice, reduce violent
crime, and strengthen interagency collaboration through strategic enforcement and prosecution. The project will concentrate on
strategic enforcement and prevention in both cities. Key activities include: 1) Parolee Forums and compliance checks for high-risk
offenders, and 2) Increased prosecutions in Chicago in direct collaboration with the Crime Gun Intelligence Center (CGIC).

Funds will also be used to support the Illinois Department of Corrections to address high-risk, gang-involved parolees in target
areas, and the Cook County State's Attorney's Office to enhance prosecutions through the CGIC. The prosecutor assigned to the
CGIC will be designated as a Special Assistant United States Attorney, focusing on high-impact offenders to reduce gang activity.

Page: 1 of 20

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $306,686.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 20



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Categorical Exclusion

NEPA Letter

None of the following activities will be conducted whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a
related third-party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

Additionally, the proposed action is neither a phase nor a segment of a project that when reviewed in its entirety would
not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion. 

Consequently, the subject federal action meets the Office of Justice Programs' criteria for a categorical exclusion as
contained in paragraph 4(b) of Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 20

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04006-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$306,686.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14211662

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 20



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods - Northern District of Illinois - FY24

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Task Force has
a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes activity related to gun trafficking,
gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford
during the project period of October 1, 2024, to September 31, 2027. In Chicago, the focus is on the seven most violent police
districts: South Shore, Englewood, Back of the Yards, Lawndale, Garfield Park, Austin, and Auburn/Gresham. Rockford will
address citywide crime reduction. The overarching goal is to prevent crime before it happens by targeting high-risk individuals and
areas. Additionally, the NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. 

Building on previous PSN efforts, Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be used to increase awareness of procedural justice, reduce violent
crime, and strengthen interagency collaboration through strategic enforcement and prosecution. The project will concentrate on
strategic enforcement and prevention in both cities. Key activities include: 1) Parolee Forums and compliance checks for high-risk
offenders, and 2) Increased prosecutions in Chicago in direct collaboration with the Crime Gun Intelligence Center (CGIC).

Funds will also be used to support the Illinois Department of Corrections to address high-risk, gang-involved parolees in target
areas, and the Cook County State's Attorney's Office to enhance prosecutions through the CGIC. The prosecutor assigned to the
CGIC will be designated as a Special Assistant United States Attorney, focusing on high-impact offenders to reduce gang activity.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Page: 5 of 20

tel:202-598-9472


1
Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

Page: 6 of 20



4
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and

Page: 7 of 20



subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice

Page: 8 of 20



requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

Page: 9 of 20



3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in

Page: 10 of 20



material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would

Page: 11 of 20



exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Page: 12 of 20



Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Page: 13 of 20



Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted

Page: 14 of 20



on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may

Page: 15 of 20



result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39
The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of
Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

Page: 16 of 20



44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,
make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

Page: 17 of 20



52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of
performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
Limit on use of grant funds for grantees' employees' salaries

With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) to any
employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of
the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal
System for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement under which this award is made.

57
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

Page: 18 of 20



[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/25/24 3:55 PM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:45 PM

 

Page: 19 of 20



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – SDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $77,507.00 

If not, explain funding source:       Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Southern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $77,507 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Housing Authority of the City of East St. Louis $65,560 

Contract/Agreement: See attached. 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – SDIL  

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

61400-various-PSXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of seventy-seven thousand five hundred seven dollars ($77,507.00), and sub-agreement 
with the Housing Authority of the City of East St. Louis in the amount of sixty-five thousand five 
hundred sixty dollars ($65,560.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 
- If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate?

Is the indirect cost included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain: Yes, however 25k of each subaward as awarded and no travel to
allow larger % of contractual (they will most likely not use travel and this allows 5% time for 
direct staff.) 

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   One (1) 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract:

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods -
Southern District of Illinois  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04099-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $77,507.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office (USAO) for the Southern District of Illinois (SDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods
(PSN) FY 2024 funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by focusing on
gang activity in public housing complexes in the City of East St. Louis. East St. Louis has one of the highest murder per capita
rates in the United States, in addition to a high rate of other violent crime. Many violent crimes occur on public housing property or
are committed by those living at or visiting residents of public housing, putting the safety of residents at risk. As such, eighty-five
percent (85%) of Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be allocated to the East St. Louis Housing Authority to assist PSN enforcement
efforts throughout public housing complexes.  

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships to target enforcement efforts for individuals at high
risk for violent offenses. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted sites and individuals. This initiative is
expected to further strengthen community and law enforcement relations and reduce violent crime. 

Page: 1 of 21

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $77,507.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 21



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Additional Information Required

NEPA Letter

The scope or location or the proposed project is such that it may not qualify for a categorical exclusion as contained in
Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations. As such, prior to initiation of the project, the
grantee may need to complete an Environmental Assessment (EA) and/or an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). 

Additional information is needed to determine if any of the following activities will be conducted as a result of this
award, whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a related third party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

For more information about NEPA requirements, including which projects may qualify for categorical exclusions, and
the preparation of an environmental review documents, please see
https://bja.ojp.gov/national-environmental-policy-act-nepa-guidance.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 21

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04099-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$77,507.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14236558

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 21



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods - Southern District of Illinois

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office (USAO) for the Southern District of Illinois (SDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods
(PSN) FY 2024 funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by focusing on
gang activity in public housing complexes in the City of East St. Louis. East St. Louis has one of the highest murder per capita
rates in the United States, in addition to a high rate of other violent crime. Many violent crimes occur on public housing property or
are committed by those living at or visiting residents of public housing, putting the safety of residents at risk. As such, eighty-five
percent (85%) of Fiscal Year 2024 funds will be allocated to the East St. Louis Housing Authority to assist PSN enforcement
efforts throughout public housing complexes.  
 
The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships to target enforcement efforts for individuals at high
risk for violent offenses. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted sites and individuals. This initiative is
expected to further strengthen community and law enforcement relations and reduce violent crime. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

1

Page: 5 of 21

tel:202-598-9472


Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

4
Page: 6 of 21



Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Page: 7 of 21



Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice
requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

Page: 8 of 21



13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

Page: 9 of 21



To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Page: 10 of 21



Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the

Page: 11 of 21



Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24

Page: 12 of 21



Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted

Page: 13 of 21



on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit

Page: 14 of 21



organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may
result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39

Page: 15 of 21



The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of
Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,

Page: 16 of 21



make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of

Page: 17 of 21



performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

57
Recipient may not expend or drawdown more than 10% of the award funds until the Bureau of Justice Assistance,
Office of Justice Programs has received and approved the required application attachment(s) and has issued an Award
Condition Modification (ACM) releasing this award condition. Obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns prior to the
ACM are made at the recipient's risk and may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements or
approved budget.

58
The recipient may not obligate, expend, or draw down any award funds for indirect costs, unless and until either -- (1)
the recipient submits to OJP a current, federally-approved indirect cost rate agreement, or (2) the recipient determines
that it is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2
C.F.R. 200.414(f), and advises OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election. 

The financial review of the budget for this award is pending. If the OJP Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO)
determines as part of its financial review that the recipient already has submitted the documentation concerning

Page: 18 of 21



indirect costs described above, this condition will be released through a Grant Award Condition Modification (ACM)
upon completion of the OCFO final budget review.

If the OJP OCFO instead determines as part of its financial review that the recipient has not yet submitted the required
documentation concerning indirect costs, this condition will not be released until OJP (including its OCFO) receives
and reviews a satisfactory submission.

59
The recipient agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and regulations applicable to the
development and implementation of the activities to be funded under this award. 

Environmental Assessment (EA): The recipient agrees and understands that funded activities (whether conducted by
the recipient or subrecipients or contractors) may require the preparation of an EA as defined by the Council on
Environmental Quality's Regulations for implementing the Procedural Provisions of the National Environmental Policy
Act (NEPA), found at 40 CFR Part 1500. An EA is a concise public document that briefly provides sufficient analysis for
determining whether to prepare an environmental impact statement (EIS) or a finding of no significant impact for the
proposed activity. If in completing an EA for a proposed activity, potential adverse environmental impacts are identified,
the EA will serve as a vehicle for developing either alternative approaches or mitigation measures for avoiding or
reducing the identified adverse environmental impacts. 

Modifications: Throughout the term of this award, the recipient agrees that for any activity that is the subject of a
completed EA, it will inform BJA of-- (1) any change(s) that it is considering making to the previously assessed activity
that may be relevant to environmental impact; or (2) any proposed new activities or changed circumstances that may
require assessment as to environmental impact, such as new activities that involve the use of chemicals or involve
construction or major renovation. The recipient will not implement a proposed change or new activity until BJA, with the
assistance of the recipient, has determined whether the proposed change or activity (or changed circumstances) will
require additional review under NEPA. Approval for implementation will not be unreasonably withheld as long as any
requested modification(s) is consistent with eligible program purposes and found acceptable under a BJA-conducted
environmental impact review process.

60
The recipient is authorized to incur obligations, expend, and draw down funds in an amount not to exceed 25% of the
total amount of the award. None of these funds may be used to acquire chemicals, or implement a project involving the
use of chemicals such as testing of evidence, or implement a major renovation or construction project, while this
condition remains on the award. The recipient is not authorized to incur any additional obligations, or make any
additional expenditures or drawdowns until the program office has verified that the recipient has submitted all
necessary documentation required to comply with Department of Justice Environmental Impact Review Procedures
found at 28 CFR Part 61, Appendix D, OJP has reviewed and approved the documentation, and an Award Condition
Modification (ACM) has been issued removing this condition.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted

Page: 19 of 21



(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/27/24 9:48 AM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:43 PM

 

Page: 20 of 21



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By:  Marlana Dokken 
Committee:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: November 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners – CDIL  

County Code:      Not applicable  
Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:        $112,328.00 

If not, explain funding source:  Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Central District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the Project Safe 
Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $112,328 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Illinois State Police $  76,259 
3) Sub-award Agreement with Roberts Analytics $  20,640 

Contract/Agreement: See attached.

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS – CDIL  

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

61400-various-PSXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of  one hundred twelve thousand three hundred twenty-eight dollars ($112,328.00), and 
sub-agreements with the ILLINOIS STATE POLICE in the amount of  seventy-six thousand two 
hundred fifty-nine dollars ($76,259.00), and ROBERTS ANALYTICS in the amount of  twenty 
thousand six hundred forty dollars ($20,640.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 



 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 

GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
 

     

 
Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: November 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: November 26, 2024 
 
All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 
 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/24 – 09/30/27 

Is match required?                                                                                                         yes     no 

   - If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?           yes     no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?                                                       yes      no 
  - If yes, what is the granting agency’s allowable de minimis Indirect Cost rate? 
 
Is the indirect cost included in the budget?                                                           yes     no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $50,000 of each 
subaward. 
   - If no, please explain: Yes, however, less the contractual % to allow for direct staff at 5%. 
 
 
Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no                                                
  - If yes, please explain: 
 
 
How many sub-awards are included in this award?   Two (2) 

   - Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?                                                yes     no 
  -  If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or     
     contract: 

         

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods
FY24 - Central Illinois  Award Number: 15PBJA-24-GG-04074-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $112,328.00   Federal Award Date: 9/27/24 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Project Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/24  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/27 

Project Description:

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Central District of Illinois (CDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by
focusing on the most violent individuals in the most violent neighborhoods throughout four specific jurisdictions in the CDIL's 46-
county district. These jurisdictions include Northwest/Rock Island, North Central/Peoria, East Central/Urbana, and South Central/
Springfield.  The CDIL will continue to address known high crime areas, organized/repeat violent offenders, and structured
criminal groups (gangs), to include juveniles. Considering the District's drivers of violence, current funded projects, and required
set-asides, voting members of the CDIL PSN Task Force elected 2024 funds to be distributed to support Focused and Strategic
Enforcement initiatives as well as Accountability (evaluation) services. As such, FY24 funds will be allocated to the Illinois State
Police to continue PSN enforcement efforts throughout the four jurisdictions specifically targeting violent crime and gang violence
in regions with the highest concentrations of gang activity.  Funding will also be provided to Robert Analytics to support project
research/evaluation.

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships and research-based initiatives to target enforcement
efforts for individuals at high risk for violent offences. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted individuals
and enhancing officer decision-making through evaluation. This initiative is expected to further strengthen community and law
enforcement communication and reduce violent crime. 

Page: 1 of 21

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Award Letter

September 27, 2024  

Dear Patrick Thompson,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $112,328.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Brent J. Cohen
Acting Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) enforces federal
civil rights laws and other provisions that prohibit discrimination by recipients of federal financial assistance from OJP,
the Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW).

Several civil rights laws, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance (recipients) to give assurances that they will comply with those
laws.  Taken together, these and other civil rights laws prohibit recipients from discriminating in the provision of
services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, and sex or from discriminating in
the provision of services on the bases of age.

Some recipients of DOJ financial assistance have additional obligations to comply with other applicable
nondiscrimination provisions like the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of religion in addition to race, color, national origin, and sex.  Recipients may also have
related requirements regarding the development and implementation of equal employment opportunity programs.

Page: 2 of 21



OCR provides technical assistance, training, and other resources to help recipients comply with civil rights obligations. 
Further, OCR administratively enforces civil rights laws and nondiscrimination provisions by investigating DOJ
recipients that are the subject of discrimination complaints.  In addition, OCR conducts compliance reviews of DOJ
recipients based on regulatory criteria.  These investigations and compliance reviews permit OCR to evaluate whether
DOJ recipients are providing services to the public and engaging in employment practices in a nondiscriminatory
manner.

For more information about OCR, your civil rights and nondiscrimination responsibilities, how to notify your employees
or beneficiaries of their civil rights protections and responsibilities and how to file a complaint, as well as technical
assistance, training, and other resources, please visit www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach.  If you would
like OCR to assist you in fulfilling your civil rights or nondiscrimination responsibilities, please contact us at askOCR@o
jp.usdoj.gov or www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts.  

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Categorical Exclusion

NEPA Letter

None of the following activities will be conducted whether under the Office of Justice Programs federal action or a
related third-party action:

(1) New construction
(2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive area, including
property (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, or (b) located within a 100-year
flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for an endangered species
(3) A renovation that will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size
(4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the
environment
(5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals (including the identification, seizure, or closure of
clandestine methamphetamine laboratories)

Additionally, the proposed action is neither a phase nor a segment of a project that when reviewed in its entirety would
not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion. 

Consequently, the subject federal action meets the Office of Justice Programs' criteria for a categorical exclusion as
contained in paragraph 4(b) of Appendix D to Part 61 of Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations.

Questions about this determination may be directed to your grant manager or Orbin Terry, Environmental Coordinator
for the Bureau of Justice Assistance.

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

Page: 3 of 21

http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/outreach
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
mailto:askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov
http://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/about#ocr-contacts


UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/27/24

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-24-GG-04074-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$112,328.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

Pub. L. No. 115-185 (codified at 34 U.S.C. 60701-60705)

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title

2024 BJA FY24 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT14213682

Awarding Agency
OJP

Program Office
BJA

Page: 4 of 21



Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods FY24 - Central Illinois

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2024

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2027

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2024

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2027

Project Description

The United States Attorney’s Office for the Central District of Illinois (CDIL) will utilize Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Fiscal Year 2024 (FY24) funds to build on current efforts underway to further reduce firearm, narcotics, and gang crimes by
focusing on the most violent individuals in the most violent neighborhoods throughout four specific jurisdictions in the CDIL's 46-
county district. These jurisdictions include Northwest/Rock Island, North Central/Peoria, East Central/Urbana, and South Central/
Springfield.  The CDIL will continue to address known high crime areas, organized/repeat violent offenders, and structured
criminal groups (gangs), to include juveniles. Considering the District's drivers of violence, current funded projects, and required
set-asides, voting members of the CDIL PSN Task Force elected 2024 funds to be distributed to support Focused and Strategic
Enforcement initiatives as well as Accountability (evaluation) services. As such, FY24 funds will be allocated to the Illinois State
Police to continue PSN enforcement efforts throughout the four jurisdictions specifically targeting violent crime and gang violence
in regions with the highest concentrations of gang activity.  Funding will also be provided to Robert Analytics to support project
research/evaluation.

The goal of this project is to leverage existing multi-disciplinary partnerships and research-based initiatives to target enforcement
efforts for individuals at high risk for violent offences. Objectives include provision of enforcement services to targeted individuals
and enhancing officer decision-making through evaluation. This initiative is expected to further strengthen community and law
enforcement communication and reduce violent crime. 

Note: This project contains a research and/or development component, as defined in applicable law.  See Part 200
Uniform Requirements.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

The recipient budget is currently under review. 

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Page: 5 of 21

tel:202-598-9472


Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

1
Meaningful access requirement for individuals with limited English proficiency

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must take reasonable steps to ensure that individuals with limited
English proficiency (LEP) have meaningful access to their programs and activities to comply with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of national origin, including discrimination
against individuals with LEP. Such steps may require providing language assistance services, such as interpretation or
translation services. The Department of Justice guidance on compliance with this requirement may be found at
"Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons" (67 Fed. Reg. 41455-41472) (https://
www.federalregister.gov/d/02-15207) and is incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2024)
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that may be set out in applicable
appropriations acts are indicated at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY24AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

3
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Page: 6 of 21



Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

4
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

5
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this award
from OJP.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the
recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

6
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

7
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38.

Page: 7 of 21



Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of
religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice.
Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that
engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Recipients and subrecipients that provide social services under this award must give written notice to beneficiaries and
prospective beneficiaries prior to the provision of services (if practicable) which shall include language substantially
similar to the language in 28 CFR Part 38, Appendix C, sections (1) through (4). A sample written notice may be found
at https://www.ojp.gov/program/civil-rights-office/partnerships-faith-based-and-other-neighborhood-organizations.

In certain instances, a faith-based or religious organization may be able to take religion into account when making
hiring decisions, provided it satisfies certain requirements. For more information, please see https://www.ojp.gov/
funding/explore/legaloverview2024/civilrightsrequirements.

8
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

9
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

10
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

11
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

Page: 8 of 21



The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 42.106(d), 28 C.F.R. § 42.405(c), and 28 C.F.R. § 42.505(f) contain notice
requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the dissemination of information regarding federal
nondiscrimination requirements.

13
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

14
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

15
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with

Page: 9 of 21



Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

16
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

17
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and

Page: 10 of 21



cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

18
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

19
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,

Page: 11 of 21



available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

20
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

21
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

22
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after January 1, 2021, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

23
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

Page: 12 of 21



The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

24
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

26
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

27
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

Page: 13 of 21



28
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

29
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

30
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

31
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

Among other items, 28 C.F.R. § 54.140 contains notice requirements that covered recipients must follow regarding the
dissemination of information regarding federal nondiscrimination requirements.

32
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

Page: 14 of 21



The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

33
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

34
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

35
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

36
Recipient understands and agrees that it must submit quarterly Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) and semi-annual
performance reports through JustGrants (justgrants.usdoj.gov), and that it must submit quarterly performance metrics
reports through BJA's Performance Measurement Tool (PMT) website (https://bjapmt.ojp.gov/). For more detailed
information on reporting and other requirements, refer to BJA's website. Failure to submit required reports by
established deadlines may result in the freezing of grant funds and High Risk designation.

37
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

38
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial

Page: 15 of 21



Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may
result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

39
The award recipient agrees to participate in a data collection process measuring program outputs and outcomes. The
data elements for this process will be outlined by the Office of Justice Programs.

40
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

41
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

42
Copyright; Data rights

The recipient acknowledges that OJP reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and authorize others to use (in whole or in part, including in connection with derivative
works), for Federal purposes: (1) any work subject to copyright developed under an award or subaward (at any tier);
and (2) any rights of copyright to which a recipient or subrecipient (at any tier) purchases ownership with Federal
support.

The recipient acknowledges that OJP has the right to (1) obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the data first
produced under any such award or subaward; and (2) authorize others to receive, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
such data for Federal purposes. "Data" includes data as defined in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) provision
52.227-14 (Rights in Data - General).

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient (at any tier), if applicable) to ensure that the provisions
of this condition are included in any subaward (at any tier) under this award.

The recipient has the responsibility to obtain from subrecipients, contractors, and subcontractors (if any) all rights and
data necessary to fulfill the recipient's obligations to the Government under this award. If a proposed subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor refuses to accept terms affording the Government such rights, the recipient shall promptly
bring such refusal to the attention of the OJP program manager for the award and not proceed with the agreement in
question without further authorization from the OJP program office.

43
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of

Page: 16 of 21



Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

44
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,
make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

45
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

46
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

47
The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

48
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

49
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

50
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award

Page: 17 of 21



conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of
performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

54
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

55
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be
used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

56
The recipient's budget (and budget narrative) is pending clearance by OJP. 

Prior to budget clearance (and unless there is a more restrictive condition on this award, in which case the terms of
that more restrictive condition apply): The recipient may not drawdown more than 10% of the award. Pre-clearance
obligations, expenditures, and drawdowns may be disallowed if not in compliance with program requirements. 

The recipient should be judicious in using award funds prior to budget clearance. Generally, OJP expects that
recipients (depending on the specific project scope) may need to advertise for award-funded positions, pay personnel
and fringe benefits for positions budgeted under the award, plan for project activities, attend training and pay training-
related travel needed to begin the project, and engage in other limited activities conducted by recipient staff (i.e.,
generally not requiring a subaward or procurement contract under an award). 

OJP will issue an Award Condition Modification upon budget clearance.

57
The recipient may not expend or drawdown more than 10% of the award funds until: (1) it has provided to the grant
manager for this OJP award information regarding research and evaluation independence and integrity in accordance
with the detailed instructions in the program solicitation, (2) OJP has completed its review of the information provided
and of any supplemental information it may request, (3) the recipient has made (or agreed to) any adjustments to the
award (including as to amount) that OJP may require to prevent, eliminate, mitigate, or otherwise adequately address

Page: 18 of 21



any actual or apparent personal or financial conflict of interest on the part of the investigators or other staff/consultants
engaged in the research/evaluation or organizational conflict of interest on the part of the recipient entity, and (4)
Award Condition Modification (ACM) has been issued to remove this condition. Obligations, expenditures, and
drawdowns prior to the ACM are made at the recipient's risk and may be disallowed if not in compliance with program
requirements or approved budget.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Acting Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Brent J. Cohen

Signed Date And Time
9/25/24 3:56 PM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
10/2/2024 4:42 PM

Page: 19 of 21



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4225 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov    

Prepared By:   Rick Ciganek 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   November 18, 2024 

Board Meeting Date:      November 26, 2024 

Resolution Title:         Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Agreement for Police Services with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?       yes  Appropriation Amount:  

If not, explain funding source:  815 Entertainment LLC, Dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A     Budget Impact: N/A  

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes a servicing contract with 815 
Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford at the new casino. The extension went into effect 
August 29, 2024 and terminates automatically on August 28, 2027. The agreement provides funding for 
police services for one deputy for 12 hours a day, seven days a week and an additional part-time deputy. 
It also provides for additional billing rates for special events, the purchase and training of a police K-9 and 
the cost of a squad car. 815 Entertainment LLC, will pay approximately four hundred thirteen thousand 
($413,000.00) the first year of the agreement, four hundred twenty-six thousand ($426,000.00) the 
second year of the agreement and four hundred forty thousand $440,000.00) in the final year of the 
agreement. 

Recommendation:    Approve the agreement. 

Contract/Agreement:  Attached 

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed and approved the contract. 

Follow-Up:   n/a 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  November 26, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2024 CR

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR POLICE SERVICES WITH 815 
ENTERTAINMENT LLC, DBA HARD ROCK CASINO ROCKFORD 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office proposes the extension of an 
agreement for police services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford at the 
new casino; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement shall commence on August 29, 2024, and 
terminate automatically on August 28, 2027 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or 
before the termination date; and  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement regarding details of police 
services for the Hard Rock Casino and recommends approving an agreement from: 

815 Entertainment 
DBA Hardrock Casino Rockford 
7801 East State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61108 
Attn: Director of Security 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement similar in language to Resolution Exhibit A with 815 
ENTERTAINMENT, DBA HARDROCK CASINO ROCKFORD, 7801 EAST STATE STREET, 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61108. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Deputy-Chief-Uniform Services 
Bureau, Winnebago County Sheriff, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board 
Office, and County Auditor.       



 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
            

                  
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



1  

AGREEMENT 
FOR POLICE SERVICES 

 
This Agreement for Police Services (“Agreement”) entered into by and among the 815 
Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford ("Hard Rock"), the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois (“County”) and the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (“Sheriff”) for 
the purchase and provision of law enforcement services to Hard Rock, located at 7801 East 
State Street, Rockford, Illinois (new casino).  Hard Rock, the County and the Sheriff are 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.”  

 
The Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
Section I. TERM 
 

A. This Agreement shall commence on August 29, 2024 and terminate automatically on 
August 28, 2027 unless it is renewed in writing by the parties on or before the 
termination date of August 28, 2027. 

 
B. This Agreement may be amended by agreement or terminated at will, by the parties 

upon a 30-day written notice executed by any one of the parties. 
 
Section II. STAFFING BY SHERIFF’S DEPUTIES 

 

A. The Sheriff, pursuant to this Agreement, shall assign fully equipped uniformed Deputies 
totaling 5,212 hours per year to provide the law enforcement services and schedule listed 
herein. 

 
B. One (1) Deputy will be assigned exclusively to Hard Rock located at 7801 East State 

Street, Rockford, Illinois, twelve (12) hours per day; three hundred sixty-five (365) days 
per year. The hours will be determined by Hard Rock Management. One (1) additional 
Deputy will be assigned on Friday and Saturday nights for eight (8) hours, from 7:00 p.m. 
to 3:00 a.m.  

 
C. Hard Rock reserves the right to request additional personnel. Additional personnel or 

hire backs shall require an additional fee, in accordance with Section VI of this 
Agreement and Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.  
 

D. Deputies assigned to work at the Hard Rock property shall report to and work under the 
direct supervision of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office Command Staff. 

 
E. Deputies that are assigned will assist Hard Rock security staff and management staff with 

any requests for police services, patrol the exterior and interior of the building, provide 
assistance to customers and staff as requested, and be present for the money pick up from 
the casino. The primary goal is to provide extra visual deterrence and protection to 
patrons and staff. 



2  

Section III. COORDINATION 
 

The Deputy Chief assigned by the Sheriff shall serve as liaison to the Hard Rock Police 
Program. The liaison shall be available to the Hard Rock representatives to assist in the 
implementation of this Agreement. 

 
Section IV. UNIFORMS 

 

Designated Sheriff’s Deputies shall be fully equipped by the Sheriff and shall wear the 
authorized uniform of the Sheriff’s Office. Additional or alternative clothing for special 
assignments shall be approved by the Deputy Chief serving as liaison. 
 

  Section V. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Hard Rock shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Sheriff, the County and the 
Sheriff and County’s officers, agents, elected and appointed officials, and employees, 
from and against any and all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, as a result of the grossly negligent or willful acts of Hard 
Rock, and/or Hard Rock’s officers, agents and employees in connection with or as a 
result of this Agreement.  
 
The County and Sheriff shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Hard Rock and its 
directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives (each, an “Indemnified Party”) 
from and against any and all claims, loss, damage, injury and liability, excluding attorneys’  
fees, as a result of the grossly negligent or willful acts solely of the County and/or solely of 
the Sheriff or either party’s officers, agents and employees in connection with or as result of 
this Agreement. 
 

Section VI. REIMBURSEMENT PROCEDURES 
 

A. Hard Rock shall compensate the County for police services and equipment as follows and 
as provided in the attached Exhibit A: 

 
1. Hard Rock agrees to reimburse the Sheriff for the actual personnel costs (salary and 

fringe benefits) for the deputies providing police services to Hard Rock under this 
Agreement. The Sheriff shall remain the sole and exclusive employer of the deputies 
and any other personnel assigned to perform any duties under this Agreement, and 
shall be responsible for securing Worker’s Compensation coverage for all such 
employees. Under no circumstances shall any of the deputies or other employees 
assigned by the Sheriff to perform tasks and duties under this Agreement be 
considered employees of Hard Rock. 

 
 
 



3  

a) Assigned Personnel:  
i. One (1) 12-month Senior Deputy pay working 4,380 hours per year. 

ii. One (1) Additional Deputy pay working 832 hours per year. 
iii. Any additional personnel shall be paid at a flat rate, in accordance with 

Exhibit A. 
 

2.  Hard Rock agrees to purchase a squad car and a K-9 to be used by the County for the    
     services provided under this Agreement for a total amount of $103,000.00.  
 a) The cost of the squad car is $75,000.00. 
 b) The cost of the K-9 and required training is $28,000.00. 
 
3.  Payments shall be made monthly based on a flat rate equal to one month (i.e. 1/12th) of  
     the estimated annual amount.  

 
4.   TOTAL MONTHLY PAYMENT FOR PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT: 
 a) August 29, 2024 — August 28, 2025:  $34,444.59 
 b) August 29, 2025 — August 28, 2026: $35,550.01 
 c) August 29, 2026— August 28, 2027: $36,694.12 

 
B. This Agreement shall automatically be modified to accurately reflect any increases or 

decreases as adjustments to salaries and fringe benefits of officers, conforming to any 
changes in the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #50 contract between the officers and 
Winnebago County. The Sheriff shall notify Hard Rock of any change of compensation 
or any change of the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge #50 contract, in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to such change becoming effective. 
 

SECTION VII. NOTICE 
 

 All notices, approvals, demands, requests or other documents required or permitted under 
this Agreement, other than routine communications necessary for the day-to-day operation of these 
services, shall be deemed properly given if hand delivered or sent by nationally recognized 
overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the 
following addresses: 
 
If to the County:       If to Hard Rock: 
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois    815 Entertainment LLC, 
Attn:  Chairman Joseph Chiarelli     dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford  
404 Elm Street, Room 533     7801 East State St. 
Rockford, Illinois 61101     Rockford, Illinois 61114 
        Attn: Director of Security 
With a copy to: 
 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
Attn: Sheriff Gary Caruana 
650 W. State Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61102     



4  

 
Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other parties given in the same manner provided 
above.  Any notice, demand, or request sent pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon receipt 
or refusal of delivery. 
 
Section VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Each Party agrees that during the Term of this Agreement, without obtaining the prior 

written consent of the other Party, neither such Party nor any of its affiliates or 
representatives (each, a "Restricted Person") shall directly or indirectly, for itself or on 
behalf of another person or entity: 

1. Solicit for employment or otherwise induce, influence, or encourage to 
terminate employment with the other Party any current employee of the other 
Party with whom the Restricted Person had more than incidental contact or 
who became known to the Restricted Person in connection with the contract 
(each, a "Covered Employee"), except (i) pursuant to a general solicitation 
through the media that is not directed specifically to any employees of the 
other Party, unless such solicitation is undertaken as a means to circumvent 
the restrictions contained in or conceal a violation of this Section or (ii) if the 
other Party terminated the employment of such Covered Employee before the 
Restricted Person having solicited or otherwise contacted such Covered 
Employee or discussed the employment or other engagement of the Covered 
Employee. 

 
The Parties agree that the duration, scope, and geographical area of the restrictions 
contained in this Section are reasonable. Upon a determination that any term or 
provision of this Section is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the court may modify this 
Section to substitute the maximum duration, scope, or geographical area legally 
permissible under such circumstances to the greatest extent possible to affect the 
restrictions originally contemplated by the Parties hereto. 
 

B. The County agrees to keep in force during the term of the Agreement, Sheriff’s 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement and Worker’s Compensation and related 
insurance coverage at amounts required by statute. The County’s failure to maintain the 
above insurance shall constitute default, and Hard Rock may cancel this Agreement. 

 
C. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Sheriff shall retain control over all 

matters in the performance of the police protection and law enforcement services 
provided herein, including, but not limited to, the personnel assigned, the methods of 
rendering such services, the level of standards of performance, the training, equipment, 
and discipline of any personnel, and the general control of all assigned personnel, 
equipment, communication facilities, and all supplies relevant herein. At no time shall 
any officer, official, or employee of Hard Rock undertake to direct any of the assigned 
personnel as to the performance of police protection and law enforcement services. 



5  

 
D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Hard Rock shall have the right to request additional 

services, such as traffic control, special events, and incident investigation to the extent 
they are outside of regular police services. Any request for additional services may 
require an additional fee in accordance with Section VI of this Agreement. Hard Rock 
shall not control the method of performance of such services, but may request the time 
and place of performance, and the number of officers to be involved, except where the 
same may conflict with minimum staffing rules or policies of the Sheriff. 

 
E. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of the contracting parties, and 

nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or impliedly, to provide any 
right or benefit of any kind whatsoever to any person or entity who is not a party to this 
agreement, or to acknowledge, establish or impose any legal duty to any third party. 
 

F. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties hereto and it 
supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions between the parties relative 
to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and inure to 
the benefit of and be enforceable by and against their respective successors, personal 
representatives, heirs, legatees, and assigns.     
 

G. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Illinois.  
 

H. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

<signature page follows> 
 
 
 



6 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be effective upon the signing of the last party and approval by the 
County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois, the Sheriff of Winnebago County, Illinois, and 
Hard Rock. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the _____ day of 
___________________________, 2024.  

815 Entertainment, LLC 
dba, Hard Rock Casino 
Rockford 

By: 
General Manager 

Attest: 

County of Winnebago, Illinois 

By:   _______________     
Joseph V. Chiarelli 

         Chairman of the County Board 
         of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  

By: 
Gary Caruana 

      Winnebago County Sheriff 

Attest: 
Lori Gummow 

            Clerk of the County Board 
    of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



HARDROCK CASINO 3 Year Contract 

10/1/24-9/30/25 10/1/25-9/30/26 10/1/26-9/30/27

Average Deputy Rate $41.6550 $43.1129 $44.6219

Average Over-Time Hourly Rate $62.4825 $64.6694 $66.9328

F.I.C.A. -- 6.2% $3.87 $4.01 $4.15

Medicare - 1.45% $0.91 $0.94 $0.97

I.M.R.F.  8.73% $5.45 $5.65 $5.84

TOTAL OT RATE W / BENEFITS $72.7171 $75.2622 $77.8964

Cost for one (1)  Deputy for 12 hours a day, 7 days a 

week (4,380 hours per year) $318,501.04 $329,648.58 $341,186.28

Cost for one (1) Additional Deputy on Friday and 

Saturday nights from 7:00 pm to 3:00 am (832 hours 

per year) $60,500.66 $62,618.18 $64,809.81

TOTAL PERSONNEL $379,001.70 $392,266.76 $405,996.10

Monthly Payment Personnel $31,583.47 $32,688.90 $33,833.01

Squad Car - $75,000 & K9 - $28,000 for a total of 

$103,000 to be Paid monthly over three (3) years $2,861.11 $2,861.11 $2,861.11

TOTAL MONTHLY PAYMENT PERSONNEL AND 

EQUIPMENT $34,444.59 $35,550.01 $36,694.12


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Debbie Jarvis, Director, Court Services :  Juvenile Detention Center & Resource Intervention Center - Staffing Update
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn., IL, U.S. Dept. of Justice & PSN Partners - NDIL
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn., IL, U.S. Dept. of Justice & PSN Partners - SDIL
	Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award & Authorizing Agreements between Cty. of Winn, IL, the U.S. Dept. of Justice & PSN Partners - CDIL
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Agreement for Police Services with 815 Entertainment LLC, DBA Hard Rock Casino Rockford



